
 
Telephone Enquiries: Policy and Overview & Scrutiny Officer (01254) 380109 
Email:  michael.cunliffe@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on: Tuesday 22nd October 2019 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Communities and Wellbeing  
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Wednesday, 30 October 2019 at 10.00 am, 
QE Room, Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Glen Harrison (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Bernadette Parkinson, Judith Addison, June Harrison, Patrick McGinley and 
Kate Walsh 
 
Co Optees: Bernard Dawson and Doug Hayes 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
To submit the Minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on the 4th September 2019 for approval as a correct record. 
 
Recommended - That the Minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 of 2 

 

4.   Healthy Place Healthy Future  (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
Presentation by Beth Wolfenden, Public Health Development Manager, Blackburn with 
Darwen Council. 
 

5.   Review of Town Centre Events 2018-2019  (Pages 11 - 14) 
 
To update Members of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the 12 month event programme following the Accrington Town Square 
refurbishment. 
 
Recommended  - That the report be noted and any comments be submitted to 

the Executive Director (Environment). 

 
 

6.   The Abbeyfield Society  (Pages 15 - 18) 
 
To inform Members of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the latest information provided by The Abbeyfield Society in relation to 
consultations concerning the closure of Abbeyfield House (Oak Hill Mansion) located in 
Oak Hill Park, Accrington. 
 
Recommended - That the letters be noted. 
 

 
 



 
 

 
COMMUNITIES AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

 
Wednesday, 4th September, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Glen Harrison (in the Chair),  

Councillors Bernadette Parkinson (Vice Chair), Judith Addison, 
June Harrison, Patrick McGinley and Kate Walsh 

  

  

Apologies: Co-optees:  Bernard Dawson and Doug Hayes 
 

 
97 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Bernard Dawson and Doug Hayes. 
 

98 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

99 Minutes of Last Meeting 11th July 2019 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on Thursday, 11th July 2019 were submitted for approval as a correct 
record. 
  
Resolved        -  That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct record. 
 

100 Council Tax Collection and Recovery 
 
The Customer Contact Manager submitted a report on Council Tax Collection and 
Recovery to provide the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with an overview of the Council 
Tax and NNDR Collection and Recovery Policy and methods used by the Council in the 
collection and recovery of Council Tax arrears.  To discuss the report the Customer Contact 
Centre Manager, Rachael Walker, the Revenues Manager, Lee Middlehurst and Cabinet 
Portfolio Holder for Resources, Councillor Joyce Plummer were all in attendance at the 
meeting.   

The Contact Centre Manager referred to Member concerns that residents were being 
subject to unfair processes in relation to the collection of council tax arrears and the 
comparisons that had been made between Rossendale and Hyndburn Borough Councils.  
She pointed out that there were some subtle differences in how the two Councils conducted 
business but explained that Hyndburn Council had more ways of offering support and 
provided examples of this. She informed the Committee that Hyndburn Borough Council 
had acted fairly in carrying out its business and that Rossendale Borough Council had 
referred more cases to the Bailiff/Enforcement Agents, and that this had been confirmed by 
the Manager of the Citizens Advice Bureau for Rossendale and Hyndburn. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 3.



 
 
 

 

 
 

Councillor Plummer, Cabinet Portfolio for Resources, informed the Committee, for clarity, 
that Rossendale Bailiffs were used by the Council as an enforcement agency rather than 
Rossendale Borough Council. 
 
Members had submitted questions, in advance, to the Officers concerned in respect of the 
following: 
 

 Councillor concerns regarding the wording used in letters sent to residents.   

 There should be more contact with residents who are in arrears by person rather than 
by letter. 

 Letters should be available in different languages. 

 What percentage of those summoned receive Universal Credit? 

 Daily reminder letters seemed excessive. 

 Is the lower limit for summons too low? 

 Is there provision for affordability assessments when recovering debts? 

 When are external agencies sent to recover debts? 

 What criteria was used to set fees in comparison to other agencies? 

 How many cases actually get to the bailiff stage? 

 How many people in debt were referred to other agencies? 

 How many of the Agencies used were regulated? 

 What was the policy for refunding overpayments? 

 Which areas of the Borough are more likely to miss Council Tax payments? 

 What action is being taken to increase the rates of direct debit payment?   

 How often is the Collection and Recover Policy reviewed? 

 A request for further information on the trial scheme to support the debt management 
work done at CARH? 

 
Councillor Plummer, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Resources, provided responses to the 
above advanced questions.  On the request of the Chair, she circulated copies of two 
sample letters sent to residents to recover council tax arrears.  She informed the meeting 
that there was not currently an option of providing letters in other languages as this would 
be too expensive to implement.  She pointed out that Officers who responded to residents 
questions and requests were all fully trained in negotiation of payments and that legislation 
directed much of what the Council did and that they worked within these guidelines.  She 
reported that 11% of people who were in debt were in receipt of Universal Credit.  She 
informed Members that external Enforcement Agents were only used as a last resort after 
attempts had been made to recover monies in instalments.  She explained that the 
collection of fees had been agreed by the County Clerk and that they annually tested the 
local market in respect of the agencies used by the Council.  She gave details of the 
number of orders obtained and those referred to Enforcement Agents.  To refund any 
overpayments she informed the Committee that taxpayers were written to for bank details 
so that this could happen.  The number of reminder notices issued were provided and she 
explained that the Council Tax and NNDR Collection and Recovery Policy was reviewed 
annually and that the trial scheme to support the debt management work done at CARH 
was still in its infancy so she was unable to provide any further information on this at the 
present time. 
 
Councillor Walsh proposed that larger font size was used in letters and the timeline for 
repayments should be reviewed to make it more transparent in relation to when costs are 
implemented.  She also suggested that, in respect of the recovery of overpayments, people 
should be asked if they would like to be refunded instead of using this to cover a two month 
payment. 
 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
 

Councillor McGinley proposed extending the amount of days to pay outstanding debts from 
the current 7 days to provide more time for residents to be able to put plans in place for 
repayment.   
 
Councillor Addison suggested that a clearer font was used in letters. 
 
Resolved                        (1) That clear font, size and wording are used in reminder 

letters/notices sent to resident;  
                                       (2) That the annual review of the Council Tax and NNDR 

Collection and Recovery Policy gives consideration to 
making it more transparent about the implementation of 
costs for outstanding debt and allowing more time for 
people to make arrangements for clearing outstanding 
debts; and 

                                       (3)    To ensure that people are offered a refund for 
overpayments rather than payment being used for the 
following month. 

 
101 Universal Credit 

 
The Chair explained that a report had been requested from the Department of Works and 
Pensions on the impact of the roll out of Universal Credit to residents in Hyndburn.  He 
informed the meeting that they had received a report and although the Department of 
Works and Pensions had not sent a representative to the meeting they had agreed to meet 
with Councillors outside of the meeting. 
 
Resolved                        - That the report be noted.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 

 
 

Pennine Lancashire’s Healthy Place, Healthy Future Childhood Obesity Trailblazer Programme  
 
Background 
 
More than one in five children are already overweight or obese on entering Reception. This rises to 
one in three in Year 6. There is a ‘deprivation gap’ with children from the most deprived areas more 
than twice as likely to be obese and more than four times as likely to be severely obese than children 
from the least deprived areas.  The Government published the second chapter of the Childhood 
Obesity: Plan for action in June 2018, setting out the ambition to halve childhood obesity and 
significantly reduce the gap in obesity between children from the most and least deprived areas by 
2030. 
 
The Childhood Obesity Trailblazer Programme seeks innovative action to tackle childhood obesity at 
local level. The programme is funded by the Department of Health and Social Care and managed by 
the Local Government Association. It is intended to test the limits of existing powers and developing 
solutions to local obstacles aiming to enable ambitious local action and to achieve change at scale. 
 
The three year Trailblazer programme commenced in June 2019, with five sites selected to lead 
projects to implement their plans. Over the three years, Trailblazer authorities will develop, deliver, 
review and expand their plans. Each Trailblazer authority will receive £100,000 worth of funding and 
project support each year to progress their project. This will include government expert support, 
subject matter expertise, support from the Delivery Support Partner, FutureGov. Some support will 
also be provided to trailblazer authorities to develop their local evaluation plans in the early stages 
of the three-year programme. 
 
Pennine Lancashire’s vision for ‘Healthy Place Healthy Future’ is a coordinated approach to 
childhood obesity, linking four levers for change to achieve the best outcomes: 

1. Local Planning/Policy Impact  

 Explore innovative approaches to strengthen BwD’s Planning for Health Supplementary 
Planning Document with a framework for Districts to embed health in planning policies 
and support them to adopt a Planning for Health Supplementary Planning Document.   

 Develop positive policies to encourage healthier options for A3 (cafes) /A5 (Hot Food 
Takeaways) outlets and restrict/regulate where establishments do not comply.   

2. System Leadership 

 Develop a network of informed and empowered Elected Members to advocate for 
healthy weight locally and influence Primary Care Neighbourhoods to ensure a whole 
system approach 

 Develop an embedded support programme, with a network of Elected Member 
Champions aware of the impact of wider determinants of obesity and empowered to 
challenge the system. 

 Work with ‘Food Power’ to adapt and embed #Darwengetshangry in localities, led by 
Pennine Lancashire’s Youth MPs/Deputies/school councils to raise the profile of food for 
health, support food establishments engaged with Recipe 4 Health and drive demand for 
healthy affordable food.   

3. Business Growth and Development Programme  

 Support existing A3/A5 businesses to provide healthier, affordable food and recognise 
with the closely scrutinised Recipe 4 Health award 

 Work with A3/A5 establishments to develop incentives for healthier food, including 
procurement, advertising, menu development, inter-borough mentoring/sharing good 
practice, masterclasses with a local celebrity chef and links to local producers. 

 Develop consistent business support. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4.

https://togetherahealthierfuture.org.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/childhood-obesity-a-plan-for-action-chapter-2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/childhood-obesity-a-plan-for-action-chapter-2


 

 
 

4. Social Movements for a Healthier Food Offer 

 Support communities to drive demand for healthier takeaway food though the 
development of the ‘Great Big Junk Food Debate’.  

 Link communities with existing/developing social movements including ‘Keep XXX Tidy’ 
‘Breast Intentions’ and #darwengetshangry to support this drive for healthier food.  

 
What is the potential impact on Hyndburn Council and Residents? 

 A commitment to review A3/A5 policy and contribute to the development of a consistent 
planning policy approach across Pennine Lancashire 

 Empowered and informed Elected Members who are able to influence health and wellbeing 
in Hyndburn and in particular the healthy weight agenda 

 Engaged communities who are co-producing the ‘Great Big Junk Food Debate’ as a forum to 
talk about food in its widest sense 

 Informed and engaged local food businesses who are incentivised to provide a healthier 
food offer 

 
Key Issues 
It recognised that economic regeneration is a key priority for all Councils and this work will call for 
compromise in order to tackle childhood obesity.  Having the support of elected members and the 
chief executive is vital to creating the right mind set and to for the success of this approach. It sends 
a clear signal that tackling obesity is a priority not just for public health but for the whole council and 
its wider stakeholders, thereby facilitating cooperation across departments and with local 
communities and partners. 
 
It is widely recognised that capacity across Pennine Lancashire is an issue.  Support for the 
programme will provided by Food Active who will support the development of the evidence base for 
the Supplementary Planning Documents, lead the community development lever and support the 
district leads with the Elected Member Development.  Having qualified nutritionists as part of the 
project team, they will also work closely with identified businesses to improve their food offer.   
 
The programme also benefits from an Expert Panel (Appendix B) who will be responsible for 
providing academic, policy development and business oversight to the programme.  The national 
Trailblazer steering group will monitor the progress of the Trailblazers and provides the forum to 
raise challenges and barriers experienced with policy makers in Government. 
 
Healthy Place, Healthy Future Project Team Information 
Healthy Place, Healthy Future is being led by Blackburn with Darwen’s Public Health team and can be 
contacted as follows: 
Beth Wolfenden  Public Health Development Manager  
beth.wolfenden@blackburn.gov.uk 01254 666960 
The Programme Provider is Food Active and can be contacted as follows: 
Alex Holt alex.holt@foodactive.org.uk 0151 237 2686 
www.foodactive.org.uk @food_active  
 
Appendices and Supporting Documents 
 
Appendix A Healthy Place, Healthy Future Trailblazer Plan  
Appendix B Healthy Place, Healthy Future Expert Panel Bios 
 

 

Page 8

https://togetherahealthierfuture.org.uk/
mailto:beth.wolfenden@blackburn.gov.uk
mailto:alex.holt@foodactive.org.uk
http://www.foodactive.org.uk/
file://///dlpcfs02/Public%20Health/Public%20Health/Childhood%20Obesity%20Trailblazer%20Programme/Application%20Paperwork/COTP%20Trailblazer%20Plan%20Pennine%20Final.pdf
Healthy%20Place%20Healthy%20Future%20Expert%20Panel%20Biographies.docx


 

 
 

Pennine Lancashire – Childhood Obesity Trailblazer Briefing 

Elected Members – Hyndburn 

Blackburn with Darwen has been shortlisted, on behalf of the Pennine Lancashire districts, for the 

Local Government Association's Childhood Obesity Trailblazer Programme. The vision is to engage 

with system leaders and policy heads to develop a consistent planning approach across Pennine 

Lancashire, understanding how local communities can be supported to create a social movement to 

demand healthier food and support businesses to provide it. 

Why action is needed in Hyndburn 

Childhood obesity and excess weight are significant health issues for children, young people, and 

their families. There is extensive evidence to suggest these issues can have serious implications for 

the physical and mental health of a child, which can then translate into adulthood.  

 The prevalence of childhood obesity in Hyndburn is greater than the national average, with 

22.8% of children aged 10-11 in the district classified as obese. This is the highest prevalence 

across Pennine Lancashire.  

 Hyndburn is one of the 20% most deprived districts/unitary authorities in England, which is 
significantly associated with overweight and obesity. Furthermore, about 19% (3,300) of 
children live-in low-income families which is also a risk factor for poor health outcomes.  
 

Opportunities for action 

Obesity is influenced by a complex range of factors, and therefore requires a multi-faceted approach 

from various stakeholders including national government, local government agencies, schools, 

businesses and the local community. One key identified area in the literature and targeted within 

the Pennine Lancashire trailblazer is the proliferation and frequent use of fast food takeaways and 

its relationship with the development and onset of overweight and obesity.  

 Fast food and takeaway outlets play an increasingly important role in the UK population’s 

dietary intake, as more and more of us purchase and consume foods outside the home daily. 

 The proliferation of fast food outlets has been far greater in areas of higher levels of 

deprivation, when compared to more affluent areas.  

 In Hyndburn, there are 1.56 takeaways per 1,000 residents. That's significantly more than in 

the average local authority. There's a total of 126 takeaways in the area. In addition, the 

number of takeaways in the area has increased by 14% within the last three years. 

 At a ward level, this rises to as many as 4.23 takeaways per 1,000 residents in Netherton.  

Engaging with local fast food takeaway business owners to help explore the ways in which they can 

improve their provision of food and drink to the local community is an important step in helping 

shape healthier food environments for residents in Hyndburn.  

How Elected Members can help 

Elected members can play a key role in ‘championing’ and promoting the importance of healthy 

weight in children at a local level – in effect giving high level visibility and leadership to this issue. 

Page 9

https://togetherahealthierfuture.org.uk/


 

 
 

Pennine Lancashire – Childhood Obesity Trailblazer Briefing 

Planning – Hyndburn 

Blackburn with Darwen has been shortlisted, on behalf of the Pennine Lancashire districts, for the 

Local Government Association's Childhood Obesity Trailblazer Programme. The vision is to engage 

with system leaders and policy heads to develop a consistent planning approach across Pennine 

Lancashire, understanding how local communities can be supported to create a social movement to 

demand healthier food and support businesses to provide it. 

Why action is needed in Hyndburn 

Childhood obesity and excess weight are significant health issues for children, young people, and 

their families. There is extensive evidence to suggest these issues can have serious implications for 

the physical and mental health of a child, which can then translate into adulthood.  

 The prevalence of childhood obesity in Hyndburn is greater than the national average, with 

22.8% of children aged 10-11 in the district classified as obese. This is the highest prevalence 

across Pennine Lancashire.  

 Hyndburn is one of the 20% most deprived districts/unitary authorities in England, which is 
significantly associated with overweight and obesity. Furthermore, about 19% (3,300) of 
children live-in low-income families which is also a risk factor for poor health outcomes.  
 

Opportunities for action 

Where we live has a key role to play in tackling childhood obesity and local authorities clearly have a 

challenge in balancing healthier environments with the demand for thriving and vibrant high streets. 

 The link between planning and health has been established and both the built and natural 

environment are key environmental determinants of health and wellbeing as referenced 

throughout the whole of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).  

 One key identified area in the literature and targeted within the Pennine Lancashire 

trailblazer is the proliferation and frequent use of fast food takeaways and its relationship 

with the development and onset of overweight and obesity.  

 Fast food is typically high in calories, saturated fat and salt and the proliferation of these 

outlets has been far greater in areas of higher levels of deprivation. 

 In Hyndburn, there are 1.56 takeaways per 1,000 residents. That's significantly more than in 

the average local authority. There's a total of 126 takeaways in the area. In addition, the 

number of takeaways in the area has increased by 14% within the last three years. 

 Whilst maintaining choice is important, shaping our food environments to support healthier 
choices and lifestyles is a crucial step in achieving this.  

How Planners can help 

The planning system is one area in which local authorities can take action. Planners have an enabling 

role to ensure facilities and infrastructures exist to give everyone the opportunity to live in a healthy-

weight environment. It is important for Planners to work proactively with public health, economic 

development and regeneration, housing, leisure, sport and culture and parks and green space to 

ensure this can be achieved in Hyndburn.  

Page 10

https://togetherahealthierfuture.org.uk/


 

REPORT TO: Communities and Wellbeing Overview and  Scrutiny 
Committee 

DATE: 30 October 2019 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Paul Cox – Deputy Leader – Environmental 
Services 

REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Riley – Executive Director (Environment) 

TITLE OF REPORT: Review of Town Centre Events 2018/19 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To update the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee around the 

12 month event programme following the Town Square refurbishment. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee to note the report and make any comments. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 Before the start of the financial year 2018/19, officers were allocated a budget of £80,000 

and asked to identify a variety of organisers who could help deliver a 12 month calendar of 
unique events across the new Town Square, commencing September 2018. Members 
requested that all events would be required to meet 1 or more of the following objectives; 

 

 To increase footfall/visitors to the town centre. 

 To engage with people who live in and around the Borough.  

 To create events for the widest possible audience. 

 That event’s should be accessible to attendees of all abilities. 

 To demonstrate value for money and maximise the event outcomes. 
 
3.2 Event proposals were scored and ranked using a weighted scoring system by the 

Council’s Business and Marketing Co-ordinator and Cllr Clare Cleary, the Portfolio Holder 
with responsibilities for the town centre at the time. This system assessed the organiser’s 
capacity, event manageability, planning, which objectives would be met and also on the 
event’s ability to appeal to a wide audience with unique offerings. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5.



 

 
3.3 During the 12 months, most event providers demonstrated their ability to meet the 

Council’s expectations. However, a small number required greater support than expected. 
Unfortunately, five events had to be postponed or cancelled due to weather conditions or 
lack of capability by the event organiser to safely manage the proposed event.  

 
3.4 Under the terms of the contracts, 50% of each grant was held back until the Council 

received a post event report. This provided details such as the number of attendees and 
the objectives they set out to meet, costs etc. and are used for assessing future event 
proposals. There were a number of events which were hugely successful, which officers 
would be happy to support in the future. These included; 

 

 Fairy-tale Trails which received great feedback from attendees and were successful 
in engaging users with town centre businesses. 

 The Bus Festival was a surprising success and the Soap Box Challenge was also 
hugely successful. These events confirmed large scale unique events not only bring 
people into the town centre but also engages local businesses. 

 Easter Eggstravaganza was another huge success, indicating that residents are 
receptive to interactive community type events. 

 
3.5 There were other events that were not initially successful. These included; 
 

 The Handmade & Fairtrade Markets were not very successful in attracting multiple 
traders but were hugely successful in engaging with hundreds of families by offering 
free crafting opportunities.  

 The Fairy-tale Trails did not prove popular with showing films but far more popular 
when the event offered gymnastic workshops. 

 
3.6 There were additional Civic events added during the year, such as the 100th 

Remembrance Event and Town Square Opening and additional costs in maximising event 
outputs and ensuring public safety, such as; Crowd Control Barriers, Barrier Covers, 
Gazebo’s, Picnic Blankets, Branded Pens totalling £6,400, Print Advertising and Facebook 
totalling £2,388 and Traffic Management totalling £10,175. As these were not included 
within the original event budget, they had to be accommodated by reducing costs on 
events and drawing down on some funding from the 2019/22 budget. However, some 
items like the barriers and the gazebo’s will be used again at future events. 

 
3.7 If event registration was a requirement, the numbers attending were easier to ascertain but 

where this was not possible, officers and event organisers estimated the number of 
attendees. Officers estimated that during the 12 month programme, an additional 90,000+ 
visitors have visited the events in the town centre.  

 
3.8 The gathering of standard information from each, allowed for events to be assessed on 

size, audience numbers, funding provided etc. The headlines for each event are shown 
below; 

 
 Small Events – Total cost £7,012 

Page 12



 

 11 Handmade & Fairtrade Markets, free children’s crafting, fruit and storytime - 
1,625 people took part  

 3 History Walks around Accrington - 15 people took part 

 Flash mob - 300 people took part 

 3 Fairy-tale Trails - 1,408 people have took part 
 

 Medium Events – Total costs £22,650  

 Bus Festival - 3,000 attendees 

 Chocolate Festival - 2,000 attendees 

 Theatre on the Square - 161 people took part 

 Culture & Heritage Festival - 2,000 attendees 

 Brass Band Concert - 300 attendees 

 Move & Glo Festival - 855 attendees 

 Accrington’s Biggest Circus - 491 attendees 

 Father’s Day Motorcycle Event - 3,000 attendees 

 Ron Hill 10k & Fun Run - 2,000 attendees 
 

 Large Events – Total Cost £60,235 

 Dickensian Night - 4,000 attendees 

 Accrington Music Live - 7,000 attendees 

 Food Festival - 14,000 attendees 

 Rally Challenge held at Accrington College - 6,000 attendees 

 Soap Box Challenge - 9000 attendees 

 Easter Eggstravaganza - 5000 attendees 

 Fantastical Forest Parade - 6,000 attendees 

 Accrington Town Square Grand Opening - 2,000 attendees 

 100th Remembrance Sunday - 10,000 attendees 

 Pop Party - 2,000 attendees 

 Accrington’s Biggest Quiz - 120 attendees 
 

3.9 Following the initial £80,000 of funding for 2018/19 and due to their success, the Council 
has allocated a further £110,000 to deliver more unique events on the Town Square from 
September 2019 until March 2022. The allocation of this budget will be based on a number 
of presumptions; 
 

 Successful events from the first year can be repeated and will also include a 
number of wider cultural events such as Chinese New Year and Eid. 

 Support a number of “national days” such as Industry Day and Apprentice Day. 

 To supplement the calendar with a number of large events that promotes Civic 
Pride such as a ‘Summer Spectacular’ and a ‘New Year’s Eve Street Party’. 

 To introduce special interest events such as a ‘Bus Festival’ and a ‘Hog Festival’.  

 To support event organisers in making their events self-funding. 

3.10 Feedback from event attendees and post event reporting information submitted by 
organisers, have provided officers with a benchmark for what is required to deliver 
successful events, examples of which include; 

Page 13



 

 A better understanding around the types of Small, Medium and Large events that 
are popular and considered a success by attendees and local businesses. 

 Support events that increase/direct footfall inside the Market Hall. 

 Support events that promote ‘Civic Pride’ and the ‘Wow Factor’ and also trial more 
night time / seasonal events. 

 Support events that promote/involve businesses in Accrington and the Borough. 

 To not only target local residents but promote events to a wider East Lancashire 
audience. 

 Low cost of attendance to the user/attendee. 

3.12 In addition, there is now a greater understanding of the capabilities of the event 
organisers; the effect a variety of marketing channels has on an event, have access to a 
growing number of volunteers and Accrington ambassadors and a better understanding of 
what the Borough’s residents respond to. Officers have also acknowledged a number of 
complaints citing a lack of event advertising, something which will be address by a greater 
emphasis on the use of Social Media for all future events. 

4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Update report to Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee only. 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 With Portfolio Holder. 
 
6. Implications 
 
 

Financial implications (including any future 
financial commitments for the Council) 

N/A 

Legal and human rights implications N/A 

Assessment of risk N/A 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be completed in 
relation to policy decisions and should be attached 
as an appendix to the report.  

N/A 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1      None 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 

Page 14

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

Mr Miles Parkinson OBE 

Leader of the Council 

Borough of Hyndburn 

Scaitcliffe House 

Ormerod Street 

Accrington 

BB5 0PF 

 

 

3rd October 2019 

 

 

 

Dear Mr Parkinson, 

 

Your letter to David McCullough has been passed to me and please accept my sincere 

apologies for taking so long to reply. I know my colleague Sarah Hart has been in 

contact with your office and I am very happy for you to share with your Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee the letter we sent to you last month.  

 

I would welcome a meeting with David Welsby to discuss the proposed closure of Oak 

Hill Mansion, but in the meantime I will try to address the specific points in your 

letter.  The consultation with staff and discussions with residents and their relatives are 

scheduled to run until November, with the final decision being communicated to 

residents before the end of that month. 

 

We cannot consider a possible closure date as no firm decision will be made until the 

consultation concludes and we have had the opportunity to carefully consider the 

responses from residents, their loved ones and our staff.  

 

As we said in our previous letter to you, if the final decision is to close, no resident or 

staff member will be asked to leave until January 2020 at the earliest. Should that be 

the outcome, we will work with the Council and residents to make sure everyone finds a 

suitable new home that meets their needs.  

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6.



 

2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Throughout the consultation and discussions, senior colleagues are maintaining regular 

contact with the residents and staff living and working at Oak Hill. This includes 

fortnightly communications to residents and their loved ones, regular visits to the home 

to speak to residents and staff, and a dedicated helpline that means everyone can have 

their questions answered as quickly as possible. 

I hope this is helpful and we will be in touch to arrange a meeting with Mr Welsby. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Julie Robinson 

Regional Director North 

 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of Last Meeting
	Minutes

	4. Healthy Place Healthy Future
	5. Review of Town Centre Events 2018-2019
	6. The Abbeyfield Society
	Letter to Leader 13-09-19


